

APPLICATION OF DOMINION ENERGY UTAH

Case No. 20-057-21; Case No. 20-057-23

PUBLIC HEARING

December 21, 2020

ADVANCED REPORTING SOLUTIONS

801-746-5080 | office@advancedrep.com | advancedrep.com

SALT LAKE | 159 West Broadway, Broadway Lofts, Suite 100 | Salt Lake City, Utah 84101

PROVO | 3507 North University Avenue, Suite 350-D | Provo, Utah 84604

ST. GEORGE | 20 North Main Street, Suite 301 | St. George, Utah 84770



PUBLIC HEARING DOCKET NO. 20-057-21

APPLICATION OF DOMINION ENERGY UTAH TO CHANGE THE
INFRASTRUCTURE RATE ADJUSTMENT

PUBLIC HEARING DOCKET NO. 20-057-23

APPLICATION OF DOMINION ENERGY UTAH TO MODIFY THE
SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORTATION AND ENERGY PLAN SURCHARGE

VIDEO CONFERENCED PUBLIC HEARING

Taken on December 21, 2020

From 9:00 a.m. to 9:17 a.m.

Reported by: Deirdre Rand, RPR, CSR, CCR

A P P E A R A N C E S

Public Service Commission:

YVONNE HOGLE
MELISSA PASCHAL

Dominion Energy:
JENNIFFER NELSON CLARK
KELLY MENDENHALL

Utah Attorney General's Office:
JUSTIN JETTER

-ooOoo-

I N D E X

| WITNESS | PAGE |
|---|------|
| DAMIR SABANOVIC Direct Examination by Ms. Clark..... | 6 |
| JORDAN STEPHENSON Direct Examination by Ms. Clark..... | 9 |
| ERIC ORTON Direct Examination by Mr. Jetter..... | 12 |
| BOB DAVIS Direct Examination by Mr. Jetter..... | 16 |

-ooOoo-

E X H I B I T S

| EXHIBIT | DESCRIPTION | PAGE |
|---------|--|------|
| 1 | DEU Application for Docket 20-057-21 with Exhibits 1.01 through 1.06 | 7 |
| 2 | DEU Application for Docket 20-057-23 with Exhibits 1.01 through 1.05 | 10 |
| 3 | Action Request Response from Division of Public Utilities for Docket No. 20-057-21 | 13 |
| 4 | Action Request Response from Division of Public Utilities for Docket No. 20-057-23 | 17 |

-ooOoo-

P R O C E E D I N G S

MS. HOGLE: All right. Well, good morning again. It is December 21, 2020, nine o'clock in the morning, and we are here to consider two applications filed by Dominion Energy Utah: One, the Application of Dominion Energy Utah to Change the Infrastructure Rate Adjustment in Docket No. 20-057-21; and two, the Application of Dominion Energy Utah to Modify Sustainable Transportation and Energy Surcharge in Docket No. 20-057-23.

My name is Yvonne Hogle and I am the Commission's designated presiding officer in this hearing -- or for this hearing.

Let's take appearances for the record, please, starting with DEU.

MS. CLARK: Thank you. This is Jenniffer Nelson Clark. I'm counsel for Dominion Energy. I have with me Damir Sabanovic, who will be speaking on behalf of the Company for Docket No. 19-057-21. And I also have with me Jordan Stephenson, and he will be speaking on behalf of the Company for Docket 19 -- sorry, 20-057-23.

MS. HOGLE: Thank you.

The Division, please?

1 MR. JETTER: And good morning. This is Justin
2 Jetter with the Utah Attorney General's office. And I
3 represent the Utah Division of Public Utilities. And
4 the Division will present two witnesses: Eric Orton for
5 the docket ending in 21, and Bob Davis for the docket
6 ending in 23.

7 MS. HOGLE: Okay. And I don't think we have
8 any other parties on the line.

9 Ms. Clark, why don't you call your first
10 witness, please. Let's start with docket No. 21.

11 MS. CLARK: Thank you. The Company calls
12 Damir Sabanovic.

13 MR. SABANOVIC: Good morning, everyone.

14 MS. HOGLE: Good morning, Mr. Sabanovic. Do
15 you swear to tell the truth?

16 MR. SABANOVIC: Yes.

17 MS. HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

18 DIRECT EXAMINATION

19 BY MS. CLARK:

20 Q. Mr. Sabanovic, can you state your name and
21 business address for the record?

22 A. Yes. My name is Damir Sabanovic. And my
23 business address is 333 South State Street, Salt Lake
24 City, Utah.

25 Q. And did you prepare or cause to be prepared

1 the application in this docket, along with accompanying
2 Exhibits 1.01 and -- through 1.06?

3 A. Yes, I did.

4 Q. And do you adopt the contents of those
5 documents as your testimony today?

6 A. I do.

7 MS. CLARK: The Company moves for the
8 admission of the application in this matter, along with
9 the accompanying exhibits DEU Exhibit 1.01 through DEU
10 Exhibit 1.06.

11 MS. HOGLE: Thank you.

12 Any objections, Mr. Jetter?

13 MR. JETTER: No objections. Thank you.

14 MS. HOGLE: Okay.

15 MS. CLARK: Thanks.

16 BY MS. CLARK:

17 Q. Mr. Sabanovic, can you please summarize the
18 relief that the Company requests in this docket?

19 A. Yes.

20 In this docket the Company seeks to adjust the
21 infrastructure tracker replacement rate to include
22 investment related to replacement projects that were in
23 service as of November 25, 2020. In the last general
24 rate case in Docket No. 19-057-02, the Commission
25 ordered the tracker investment amount to be reset to

1 zero, and also required the Company to accumulate
2 \$80.4 million in investment on or after January 1, 2019,
3 before requesting an infrastructure tracker filing and
4 rate increase again.

5 As of November 25, 2020, the Company has
6 reached and surpassed that threshold. The majority of
7 this investment occurred in the feeder line 127, which
8 was previously classified as feeder line 22 and 23, and
9 Salt Lake County intermediate high pressure belt line
10 replacement projects.

11 The Company is requesting a \$5.2 million
12 annual revenue related to this investment. If approved,
13 this would result in an increase of \$3.65 per year, paid
14 by a typical customer using 80 dekatherms.

15 And that concludes my summary.

16 MS. CLARK: Mr. Sabanovic is available for
17 cross-examination and Commission questions.

18 MS. HOGLE: Thank you.

19 Mr. Jetter, do you have any questions?

20 MR. JETTER: I have no questions. Thank you.

21 MS. HOGLE: Thank you.

22 I don't have any questions, either. Thank
23 you, Mr. Sabanovic.

24 MR. SABANOVIC: Thank you.

25 MS. HOGLE: Do you want to call your next

1 witness? Let's -- let's just go for your next witness
2 in the docket ending with 23, Ms. Clark.

3 MS. CLARK: Of course. Thank you.

4 The Company calls Jordan Stephenson.

5 MS. HOGLE: Good morning, Mr. Stephenson.

6 MR. STEPHENSON: Good morning. Good morning.

7 MR. HOGLE: Do you swear to tell the truth?

8 MR. STEPHENSON: Yes.

9 MS. HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

10 DIRECT EXAMINATION

11 BY MS. CLARK:

12 Q. Mr. Stephenson, will you please state your
13 full name and business address for the record?

14 A. Jordan Stephenson. 333 South State, Salt Lake
15 City, Utah.

16 Q. What position do you hold with the Company,
17 Mr. Stephenson?

18 A. Manager of regulation.

19 Q. And Mr. Stephenson, did you prepare or cause
20 to be prepared the application in Docket No. 20-057-23
21 and the accompanying exhibits DEU 1.01 though --

22 A. Yes.

23 Q. -- DEU 1.05?

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. And do you adopt those documents -- the

1 contents of those documents as your testimony today?

2 A. Yes.

3 MS. CLARK: The Company moves to admit the
4 application in Docket No. 20-057-23 along with the
5 accompanying exhibits, DEU 1.01 through DEU 1.05.

6 MS. HOGLE: Any objections, Mr. Jetter?

7 MR. JETTER: No objections.

8 MS. HOGLE: Okay. They're admitted. And so
9 are the exhibits that you moved to admit in 20-057-21.
10 Thank you.

11 MS. CLARK: Perfect. Thank you.

12 BY MS. CLARK:

13 Q. Mr. Stephenson, can you please summarize the
14 relief the Company seeks in the 23 docket?

15 A. Yes.

16 In this docket the Company seeks to modify the
17 cost of service allocations used to derive the
18 sustainable transportation and energy plan surcharge
19 approved by the Commission in Docket No. 20-057-19. In
20 that docket, the approved surcharge to each customer
21 class had been calculated using the cost of service
22 allocations that were in effect at that time.

23 On November 25th the Company filed a motion to
24 implement STEP 2 cost of service rates prescribed by the
25 Commission in Docket No. 19-057-02, or the Company's

1 most recent general rate case.

2 As such, the Company now seeks to modify the
3 sustainable transportation energy plan surcharge to
4 reflect this update to the cost of service allocations.

5 When rounding, this change is too small to
6 reflect an impact to the typical customer's annual bill.
7 These changes are just, reasonable, and in the public
8 interest, and the Company requests Commission approval
9 with an effective date of December 31, 2020.

10 And this concludes my summary.

11 MS. CLARK: Mr. Stephenson is available for
12 cross-examination and Commission questions.

13 MS. HOGLE: Thank you.

14 Mr. Jetter?

15 MR. JETTER: No questions.

16 MS. HOGLE: Okay. And I don't -- I apologize.
17 I don't have any questions either.

18 Thank you, Mr. Stephenson.

19 MR. STEPHENSON: Thank you.

20 MS. HOGLE: Mr. Jetter --

21 MS. CLARK: The Company has nothing further on
22 either docket.

23 MS. HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

24 Mr. Jetter, please call your first witness.

25 MR. JETTER: Thank you. The Division would

1 like to call and have sworn in Eric Orton.

2 MS. HOGLE: Good morning, Mr. Orton.

3 MR. ORTON: Good morning.

4 MS. HOGLE: Do you swear to tell the truth?

5 MR. ORTON: I do.

6 MS. HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

7 DIRECT EXAMINATION

8 BY MR. JETTER:

9 Q. Mr. Orton, would you please state your name
10 and occupation for the record?

11 A. My name is Eric Orton. That's O-r-t-o-n. I'm
12 a utility technical consultant for the Division of
13 Public Utilities.

14 Q. Thank you. And in the course of your
15 employment with the Division, did you have the
16 opportunity to review the application and exhibits in
17 Docket 20-057-21?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. And did you create and cause to be filed
20 comments with -- from the Division of Public Utilities
21 dated December 7, 2020?

22 A. I did.

23 Q. And do you have any corrections or edits you'd
24 like to make to those comments?

25 A. No. It's accurate as far as I know.

1 Q. Thank you.

2 MR. JETTER: I would like to move to enter
3 into the record of this hearing the Action Request
4 response comments from the Division of Public Utilities.

5 MS. CLARK: No objection.

6 MS. HOGLE: Any objections?

7 MS. CLARK: No.

8 MS. HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

9 They're admitted.

10 MR. JETTER: Thank you.

11 BY MR. JETTER:

12 Q. Mr. Orton, have you prepared a brief statement
13 that summarizes the Division's position?

14 A. I have.

15 Q. Please go ahead.

16 A. Thank you.

17 On page 14 of the Commission's settlement
18 stipulation order in Docket No. 19-057-02, the
19 Commission authorized Dominion to continue the
20 infrastructure rate adjustment tracker program.

21 Section 2.07 of Dominion's Utah tariff directs
22 the procedures for covering -- recovering costs
23 associated with that program.

24 On November 25, 2020, Dominion filed the
25 application identified as Docket No. 20-057-21. On

1 December 7, 2020, the Division filed its Action Request
2 Response, Recommendation, and Comments.

3 In this filing, Dominion provides the amounts
4 and dates of when specific infrastructure investment was
5 completed and placed into service. The proposal
6 represents a total revenue requirement and incremental
7 revenue requirement increase of \$5.178 million from the
8 current revenue requirement, which was zeroed out as
9 part of the 2019 general rate case, effective March 1,
10 2020.

11 Dominion now proposes to collect in rates the
12 revenue requirement associated with that investment
13 amount. As part of this filing, Dominion included its
14 customary six exhibits showing the infrastructure
15 investment over the stated time period, the proposed
16 cost of service allocation, how collecting this amount
17 would be divided among the demand charge and volumetric
18 rates to collect the amount from each customer class,
19 the monthly change to a typical GS customer, and the
20 tariff sheets.

21 In addition to this application, Dominion has
22 also moved to implement the STEP 2 increase in rates
23 ordered in Docket No. 19-057-02, as well as the
24 application to modify the STEP surcharge in Docket No.
25 20-057-23, which Mr. Davis will address.

1 In conclusion, this application complies with
2 past Commission order, and the proposed tariff sheets
3 accurately reflect the Commission's ordered rates.

4 The Division recommends the Commission approve
5 the proposed rates with an effective date of
6 December 31, 2020 on an interim basis until the Division
7 can complete its audit, at which time it will make a
8 final recommendation to the Commission.

9 That's all. Thank you.

10 MS. HOGLE: Thank you.

11 MR. JETTER: And those were -- that was all
12 the questions I have for Mr. Orton. He's available for
13 cross and Commission questions.

14 MS. HOGLE: Thank you.

15 Ms. Clark, do you have any questions for
16 Mr. Orton?

17 MS. CLARK: I don't have any questions. Thank
18 you.

19 MS. HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

20 Mr. Orton, I just have a nonsubstantive
21 question. I didn't hear you say -- and maybe I missed
22 it, that you agree to adopt the Division -- did you say
23 that or confirm that?

24 MR. ORTON: Would you say that again? You cut
25 out for a minute.

1 MS. HOGLE: Sure.

2 I was just saying that I did not hear you say
3 that you agree to adopt the Division's comments filed on
4 December 7th as your own testimony. And I just wanted
5 to make sure that I didn't miss that. I -- Mr. Jetter
6 may have asked you that; I might have missed it.

7 But do you agree to adopt those comments as
8 your own testimony?

9 MR. ORTON: Yes, thank you. That was my
10 intent. Those are my comments and I intend to do that.
11 Thank you.

12 MS. HOGLE: Okay. Thank you.

13 And that's the only question I have,
14 Mr. Jetter. You can call your next witness.

15 MR. JETTER: Thank you.

16 The Division would like to next call and have
17 sworn, Bob Davis.

18 MS. HOGLE: Good morning, Mr. Davis.

19 MR. DAVIS: Good morning.

20 MS. HOGLE: Do you swear to tell the truth?

21 MR. DAVIS: I do.

22 MS. HOGLE: Okay. Please proceed.

23 DIRECT EXAMINATION

24 BY MR. JETTER:

25 Q. Mr. Davis, would you please state your name

1 and occupation for the record?

2 A. Yes. My name is Bob Davis, and I'm a utility
3 technical consultant for the Division of Public
4 Utilities.

5 Q. Thank you. And in the course of your
6 employment did you have the opportunity to review the
7 application and exhibits in the 20-057-23 docket?

8 A. Yes, I did.

9 Q. And after reviewing those, did you create and
10 cause to be filed with the Commission comments from the
11 Division of Public Utilities dated December 7, 2020?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And do you have any corrections or changes you
14 would like to make to that?

15 A. I do not.

16 Q. And would you adopt the comments from the
17 Division that I've identified as part of your testimony
18 today?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. Have you --

21 MR. JETTER: Actually, before I ask that, I
22 would like to move to enter into the record of the
23 hearing the Action Request Response identified as
24 comments in the docket.

25 MS. HOGLE: Okay, Ms. --

1 MS. CLARK: No objection.

2 MS. HOGLE: Thank you.

3 They're admitted.

4 BY MR. JETTER:

5 Q. Mr. Davis, have you prepared a brief summary
6 of your testimony?

7 A. Yes, I have.

8 Q. Please go ahead.

9 A. Good morning. On August 31, 2020, the
10 Commission issued its report and order for Docket No.
11 19-057-33, approving the settlement stipulation between
12 Dominion Energy Utah and other parties to fund
13 Dominion's Sustainable Transportation Energy Plan, or
14 STEP, and tariff surcharge.

15 On October 30, 2020, the Commission approved
16 the balancing account, carrying charge, and associated
17 tariff changes in Docket No. 20-057-19.

18 On November 25, 2020, Dominion concurrently
19 filed with the Commission Docket Nos. 20-057-23,
20 Application to Modify the STEP Surcharge, and 20-057-21,
21 Application of Dominion Energy Utah to Change the
22 Infrastructure Rate Adjustment.

23 Dominion's Docket No. 20-057-23, proposes to
24 modify its STEP surcharge based on the tracker
25 adjustments Dominion proposes in Docket No. 20-057-21 to

1 comply with the second STEP revenue requirement
2 adjustment approved by the Commission in Dominion's
3 general rate case under Docket No. 19-057-02.

4 The Division reviewed these changes and
5 concludes that Dominion's proposed deduction of less
6 than one cent to the overall STEP surcharge is
7 negligible and in compliance with the tracker
8 adjustments proposed in Docket No. 20-057-21.

9 Based on its review, the Division concludes
10 the proposed rates are just and reasonable and in the
11 public interest. The Division recommends the Commission
12 approves Dominion's modified STEP surcharge and tariff
13 sheets.

14 That concludes my summary. Thank you.

15 MR. JETTER: Thank you.

16 And I have no further questions for Mr. Davis.
17 He's available for cross and Commission questions.

18 MS. HOGLE: Thank you.

19 Ms. Clark?

20 MS. CLARK: I have no questions. Thanks.

21 MS. HOGLE: Okay. And I don't have any
22 either.

23 So thank you, Mr. Davis.

24 MR. DAVIS: Thank you.

25 MS. HOGLE: And unless there's anything else,

1 I think we can adjourn.

2 Does anybody have any questions? Comments?

3 MR. JETTER: Nothing further.

4 MS. HOGLE: Okay. We'll be issuing an order
5 pretty quickly.

6 Thank you all.

7 MS. CLARK: Thank you.

8 MR. JETTER: Thank you.

9 MR. MENDENHALL: Thank you.

10 MS. HOGLE: And happy holidays.

11 MS. CLARK: Happy holidays.

12 MS. HOGLE: Bye-bye.

13 MR. DAVIS: Happy holidays, everyone.

14 (Hearing concluded at 9:17 a.m.)
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE


STATE OF UTAH)
)
COUNTY OF UTAH)

I, DEIRDRE RAND, a Certified Court Reporter and
Registered Professional Reporter, hereby certify:

THAT the foregoing proceedings were taken via
teleconference, at the time and place therein set forth,
with the parties via videoconference from their
respective locations; that the proceedings were taken
down by me in shorthand and thereafter my notes were
transcribed through computer-aided transcription; and
the foregoing transcript constitutes a full, true, and
accurate record of such statements adduced and oral
proceedings had, and of the whole thereof, which were
and intelligible through the videoconference connection.

I further certify that I am not a relative or
employee of any of the parties, nor do I have a
financial interest in the action.

I have subscribed my name on this 28th day of
December, 2020.


DEIRDRE RAND, RPR, CSR, CCR

| | | |
|---|--|--|
| <hr/> | 23 6:6 8:8 9:2 10:14 | ahead 13:15 |
| \$ | 25 7:23 8:5 13:24 | allocation 14:16 |
| <hr/> | 25th 10:23 | allocations 10:17,22 11:4 |
| \$3.65 8:13 | <hr/> | amount 7:25 14:13,16,18 |
| \$5.178 14:7 | 3 | amounts 14:3 |
| \$5.2 8:11 | <hr/> | annual 8:12 11:6 |
| \$80.4 8:2 | 31 11:9 15:6 | apologize 11:16 |
| <hr/> | 333 6:23 9:14 | appearances 5:15 |
| 1 | <hr/> | application 5:6,9 7:1,8 9:20 10:4 12:16 13:25 14:21,24 15:1 |
| <hr/> | 7 | applications 5:5 |
| 1 8:2 14:9 | <hr/> | approval 11:8 |
| 1.01 7:2,9 9:21 10:5 | 7 12:21 14:1 | approve 15:4 |
| 1.05 9:23 10:5 | <hr/> | approved 8:12 10:19,20 |
| 1.06 7:2,10 | 8 | Attorney 6:2 |
| 127 8:7 | <hr/> | audit 15:7 |
| 14 13:17 | 80 8:14 | authorized 13:19 |
| 19 5:22 | <hr/> | <hr/> |
| 19-057-02 7:24 10:25 13:18 14:23 | A | B |
| 19-057-21 5:20 | <hr/> | <hr/> |
| <hr/> | accompanying 7:1,9 9:21 10:5 | basis 15:6 |
| 2 | accumulate 8:1 | behalf 5:19,22 |
| <hr/> | accurate 12:25 | belt 8:9 |
| <hr/> | accurately 15:3 | bill 11:6 |
| 2 10:24 14:22 | Action 13:3 14:1 | Bob 6:5 |
| 2.07 13:21 | addition 14:21 | business 6:21,23 9:13 |
| 20-057-19 10:19 | address 6:21,23 9:13 14:25 | <hr/> |
| 20-057-21 5:8 10:9 12:17 13:25 | adjust 7:20 | C |
| 20-057-23 5:11,23 9:20 10:4 14:25 | adjustment 5:8 13:20 | <hr/> |
| 2019 8:2 14:9 | admission 7:8 | calculated 10:21 |
| 2020 5:4 7:23 8:5 11:9 12:21 13:24 14:1,10 15:6 | admit 10:3,9 | call 6:9 8:25 11:24 12:1 |
| 21 5:4 6:5,10 | admitted 10:8 13:9 | calls 6:11 9:4 |
| 22 8:8 | adopt 7:4 9:25 15:22 | |
| | agree 15:22 | |

| | | |
|---|---|--|
| case 7:24 11:1 14:9 | 14:16 | divided 14:17 |
| change 5:7 11:5 14:19 | costs 13:22 | Division 5:25 6:3,4 11:25 12:12,15,20 13:4 14:1 15:4,6,22 |
| charge 14:17 | counsel 5:18 | Division's 13:13 |
| City 6:24 9:15 | County 8:9 | docket 5:8,11,20,22 6:5, 10 7:1,18,20,24 9:2,20 10:4,14,16,19,20,25 11:22 12:17 13:18,25 14:23,24 |
| Clark 5:17,18 6:9,11,19 7:7,15,16 8:16 9:2,3,11 10:3,11,12 11:11,21 13:5,7 15:15,17 | covering 13:22 | documents 7:5 9:25 10:1 |
| class 10:21 14:18 | create 12:19 | Dominion 5:6,7,9,18 13:19,24 14:3,11,13,21 |
| classified 8:8 | cross 15:13 | Dominion's 13:21 |
| collect 14:11,18 | cross-examination 8:17 11:12 | |
| collecting 14:16 | current 14:8 | <hr/> E <hr/> |
| comments 12:20,24 13:4 14:2 | customary 14:14 | edits 12:23 |
| Commission 7:24 8:17 10:19,25 11:8,12 13:19 15:2,4,8,13 | customer 8:14 10:20 14:18,19 | effect 10:22 |
| Commission's 5:13 13:17 15:3 | customer's 11:6 | effective 11:9 14:9 15:5 |
| Company 5:20,22 6:11 7:7,18,20 8:1,5,11 9:4,16 10:3,14,16,23 11:2,8,21 | cut 15:24 | employment 12:15 |
| Company's 10:25 | <hr/> D <hr/> | ending 6:5,6 9:2 |
| complete 15:7 | Damir 5:19 6:12,22 | energy 5:6,7,9,10,18 10:18 11:3 |
| completed 14:5 | date 11:9 15:5 | enter 13:2 |
| complies 15:1 | dated 12:21 | Eric 6:4 12:1,11 |
| concludes 8:15 11:10 | dates 14:4 | EXAMINATION 6:18 9:10 12:7 |
| conclusion 15:1 | Davis 6:5 14:25 | Exhibit 7:9,10 |
| confirm 15:23 | December 5:4 11:9 12:21 14:1 15:6 | exhibits 7:2,9 9:21 10:5, 9 12:16 14:14 |
| consultant 12:12 | dekatherms 8:14 | |
| contents 7:4 10:1 | demand 14:17 | <hr/> F <hr/> |
| continue 13:19 | derive 10:17 | feeder 8:7,8 |
| corrections 12:23 | designated 5:13 | filed 5:6 10:23 12:19 |
| cost 10:17,21,24 11:4 | DEU 5:16 7:9 9:21,23 10:5 | |
| | DIRECT 6:18 9:10 12:7 | |
| | directs 13:21 | |

| | | |
|---|---|---|
| 13:24 14:1 filing 8:3 14:3,13 final 15:8 full 9:13 | interest 11:8 interim 15:6 intermediate 8:9 investment 7:22,25 8:2, 7,12 14:4,12,15 | motion 10:23 move 13:2 moved 10:9 14:22 moves 7:7 10:3 |
| <hr/> G <hr/> | <hr/> J <hr/> | <hr/> N <hr/> |
| general 7:23 11:1 14:9 General's 6:2 good 5:3 6:1,13,14 9:5,6 12:2,3 GS 14:19 | January 8:2 Jenniffer 5:17 Jetter 6:1,2 7:12,13 8:19, 20 10:6,7 11:14,15,20, 24,25 12:8 13:2,10,11 15:11 Jordan 5:21 9:4,14 Justin 6:1 | Nelson 5:18 nonsubstantive 15:20 November 7:23 8:5 10:23 13:24 |
| <hr/> H <hr/> | <hr/> L <hr/> | <hr/> O <hr/> |
| hear 15:21 hearing 5:14 13:3 high 8:9 Hogle 5:3,12,24 6:7,14, 17 7:11,14 8:18,21,25 9:5,7,9 10:6,8 11:13,16, 20,23 12:2,4,6 13:6,8 15:10,14,19 hold 9:16 | Lake 6:23 8:9 9:14 | O-R-T-O-N 12:11 objection 13:5 objections 7:12,13 10:6, 7 13:6 occupation 12:10 occurred 8:7 office 6:2 officer 5:13 opportunity 12:16 order 13:18 15:2 ordered 7:25 14:23 15:3 Orton 6:4 12:1,2,3,5,9,11 13:12 15:12,16,20,24 |
| <hr/> I <hr/> | <hr/> M <hr/> | <hr/> P <hr/> |
| identified 13:25 impact 11:6 implement 10:24 14:22 include 7:21 included 14:13 increase 8:4,13 14:7,22 incremental 14:6 infrastructure 5:7 7:21 8:3 13:20 14:4,14 | majority 8:6 make 12:24 15:7 Manager 9:18 March 14:9 matter 7:8 million 8:2,11 14:7 minute 15:25 missed 15:21 modify 5:9 10:16 11:2 14:24 monthly 14:19 morning 5:3,5 6:1,13,14 9:5,6 12:2,3 | paid 8:13 part 14:9,13 parties 6:8 past 15:2 Perfect 10:11 |

| | | |
|--|---|---|
| period 14:15 | recent 11:1 | Section 13:21 |
| plan 10:18 11:3 | recommendation 14:2 15:8 | seeks 7:20 10:14,16 11:2 |
| position 9:16 13:13 | recommends 15:4 | service 7:23 10:17,21,24 11:4 14:5,16 |
| prepare 6:25 9:19 | record 5:15 6:21 9:13 12:10 13:3 | settlement 13:17 |
| prepared 6:25 9:20 13:12 | recovering 13:22 | sheets 14:20 15:2 |
| prescribed 10:24 | reflect 11:4,6 15:3 | showing 14:14 |
| present 6:4 | regulation 9:18 | small 11:5 |
| presiding 5:13 | related 7:22 8:12 | South 6:23 9:14 |
| pressure 8:9 | relief 7:18 10:14 | speaking 5:19,21 |
| previously 8:8 | replacement 7:21,22 8:10 | specific 14:4 |
| procedures 13:22 | represent 6:3 | start 6:10 |
| program 13:20,23 | represents 14:6 | starting 5:16 |
| projects 7:22 8:10 | Request 13:3 14:1 | state 6:20,23 9:12,14 12:9 |
| proposal 14:5 | requesting 8:3,11 | stated 14:15 |
| proposed 14:15 15:2,5 | requests 7:18 11:8 | statement 13:12 |
| proposes 14:11 | required 8:1 | STEP 10:24 14:22,24 |
| public 6:3 11:7 12:13,20 13:4 | requirement 14:6,7,8,12 | Stephenson 5:21 9:4,5, 6,8,12,14,17,19 10:13 11:11,18,19 |
| <hr/> Q <hr/> | reset 7:25 | stipulation 13:18 |
| question 15:21 | response 13:4 14:2 | Street 6:23 |
| questions 8:17,19,20,22 11:12,15,17 15:12,13,15, 17 | result 8:13 | summarize 7:17 10:13 |
| <hr/> R <hr/> | revenue 8:12 14:6,7,8,12 | summarizes 13:13 |
| rate 5:7 7:21,24 8:4 11:1 13:20 14:9 | review 12:16 | summary 8:15 11:10 |
| rates 10:24 14:11,18,22 15:3,5 | rounding 11:5 | surcharge 5:10 10:18,20 11:3 14:24 |
| reached 8:6 | <hr/> S <hr/> | surpassed 8:6 |
| reasonable 11:7 | Sabanovic 5:19 6:12,13, 14,16,20,22 7:17 8:16, 23,24 | sustainable 5:10 10:18 11:3 |
| | Salt 6:23 8:9 9:14 | swear 6:15 9:7 12:4 |
| | | sworn 12:1 |

Yvonne 5:12

Z

zeroed 14:8

testimony 7:5 10:1

threshold 8:6

time 10:22 14:15 15:7

today 7:5 10:1

total 14:6

tracker 7:21,25 8:3 13:20

transportation 5:10
10:18 11:3

truth 6:15 9:7 12:4

typical 8:14 11:6 14:19

U

update 11:4

Utah 5:6,7,9 6:2,3,24
9:15 13:21

Utilities 6:3 12:13,20
13:4

utility 12:12

V

volumetric 14:17

W

witnesses 6:4

Y

year 8:13